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The Ellsworth Community Building and Alumni Association Building are a 
handsome, pair of rectangular one and a half story municipal buildings of the 
Greek Revival style, the former built in 1834(?) and the latter constructed 
as a detached addition in 1838. Both buildings draw inspiration from the 
peristyle form and each features colonnades in the Doric order on the front and 
rear facades. The roofs are gabled. Both foundations are of granite blocks.

The slightly oBer Community Building is of wooden frame construction with 
wooden clapboard siding. Its main facade has eight columns supported by granite 
cubes across its ground floor, supporting a portico of pure- Doric detail. The 
ground-floor wall of the building is sevaibays wide, three symmetrically-placed 
twelve-over-twelve windows to each side of the main entrance doorway. The half- 
story above features a pair of gabled double dormer windows with a lunette above 
each double pair of windows in each dormer. The rear facade is similar but with 
just one central dormer, with hooded chimneys to either side, in the half-story. 
An additional taller chimney stands to the right of the dormer. The gable ends 
of the building are pierced by doors and windows in both stories, with an iron 
fire-escape leading to the half-story door at each end of the building. There are 
four windows in each story at each end, the half-story windows being nearly square 
and six-over-six, the first story ones being rectangular and nine—over-nine.

The Alumni Association Building is of brick construction on the first floor 
with, wooden half story and trim. Its main facade has six columns supported by granite 
cubes across its ground flooT,-supporting a-portico of pure Doric detail. The 
ground floor of the building is* five bays Tdjdey-two symmetrically-placed nine-over-nine 
windows with granite lintels to each side of the arched main entrance doorway. The 
half story above has'no dormers, but there are two chimneys. The real? facade is 
identical to the main facade, but has no doorway. The Gable ends are simpler than in 
the older building, one having five nearly square* six-over^two windows in the half 
story and two symmetrical granite-lintelled windows in the first story. i-.The other 
end of the building has three six-over-two windows upstairs and a door to the left 
and a twelve-over-two window to the right, both with granite lintels. There are 
no external fire-escapes, as on the Town House. . > . ;. •: -. \ .
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The old Hancock County Buildings located on Bridge Hill look 
down across the Union River at the business center of the City of 
Ellsworth.. Since the 1830 T s they have stood ,on this eminence with 
simple dignity and constitute a cherished community landmark.

The first people to write their names on the pages of the history 
of the County buildings on Bridge Hill were Mrs. Charlotte Herbert and 
her daughter of the same name. In 1833, before Ellsworth was the shiretown 
of Hancock County, the Herberts deeded the triangular piece of land to 
the Inhabitants of the Town of Ellsworth, in memory of George Herbert, Sr., 
husband and father.

Mr. Herbert was the first lawyer to settle permanently on Union River. 
In light of this the acre or more of .land was given with the stipulation 
that two-thirds of the property should be used to erect county building 
if Ellsworth b'ecame the'Shiretown. Otherwise, -the ;lot was to revert back, to 
the Herbert estate. The remaining westernmost third was to be used for a 
Tbwntiotise. The Towtihouse-'Was soon btii'lt and used as such until 1837.

-'•' f •-.'.;- .'..::;; . ; •:'. •: I

After much- ado, Elfeworth became the county seat on February 17, 1837. 
On April 3, following, the town of Ellsworth held ;a jspe.cial election to decide 
the question of giving the lot and townhouse to the county, and the building 
and lot were transferred to the county for (as the deed states) "Five dollars 
and divers other good and lawful considerations."

In 1838 the brick addition was built with John L. Moore doing the car­ 
pentry work. Mr. Moore was selectman for several years. He also held various 
other municipal offices and was a member of legislature. He died August 
20, 1890 at age 87.

On October 1, 1838 the records were moved from Gastine and later that 
month the first court session was held.

The first company that left Ellsworth for the Civil War trained on the 
campus of the County Buildings before their departure on May 21, 1861. The 
company, under Capt. Isaac Frazier, consisted of eighty men. In all 328 men 
left Ellsworth in the first seven months of the war. Years later the 
Village Monument Committee erected a monument there to their memory.

(see continuation sheet)
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As the county grew it became apparent that the buildings were no 
longer large enough to serve the need. On December 24, 1885 the county 
conveyed the property back to the Inhabitants of the City of Ellsworth 
for $1750. with the stipulation that the county could still use the 
buildings as needed. In 1886 the court moved to new quarters on Peter's 
Hill and thus came the end of an era.

The building was later used for the High School and renovation costs 
amounted to several hundred dollars. At first only the court rooms were 
employed but later the adjoining building was needed. In the interim it 
had been used as a dwelling house. An unheated corridor was added to 
connect the two buildings and aptly labeled "Iceberg Alley" by all who 
used it in the winter.

During the years 1920-23 the Boston University College of Business 
Administration held successful summer school in the building and the last 
high school class was held in June, 1924.

The building was then condemned, but the public cried out. Numerous 
letters to the Editor of the Ellsworth American demonstrated the people's 
feelings that the building ought to be kept because it was historically 
valuable. As a result the condemnation was rescinded.

Various groups used the building for short periods but by the early 
1960's the brick structure was in considerable disrepair. Again the city 
council contemplated its destruction. But, understanding the value of the 
rich heritage, they hesitated.

The Ellsworth High School Alumni Association was formed and was given 
a lease. Along with this lease the building was given a new lease on life, 
Repairs were slowly but steadily made. Today the building remains very 
much as it was when it was built 138 years ago.

The slightly older wood frame structure, the original Town House, now 
serves as the Ellsworth Community Building and is used for a variety of 
purposes.

These two dignified Greek Revival structures so intimately connected 
with the history of Ellsworth and Hancock County are valued symbols of 
permanence and progress to the community which they have long served.
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